
E. POLITICAL A4BUSE OF INTELLIGENCE 
INFORMATION 

MAJOR FIKDING 

The Committee finds that information has been collected and dis- 
seminated in order to serve the purely political interests of an intel- 
ligence agency or the administration, and to influence social policy 
and political action. 

Sub findings 
(a) White House officials have requested and obtained politically 

useful information from t.he FBI, including information on the activi- 
ties of political opponents or critics. - 

(b) In some cases, political or personal information was not specifi- 
cally requested, but was nevertheless collected and disseminated to ad- 
ministration officials as part of investigations they had requested. 
Neither the FBI nor the recipients differentiated in these cases be- 
tween national security or law enforcement information and purely 
political intelligence. 

(c) The FBI has also volunteered information to Presidents and 
their staffs, without having beea asked for it, sometimes apparently to 
curry favor with the current administration. Similarly, the FBI has 
assembled intelligence on its critics and on political figures it believed 
might influence public attitudes or Congressional support. 

(d) The FBI has also used intelligence as a vehicle for covert efforts 
to influence social policy and political action. 

Elaboration of Findings 
The FBI’s ability to gather information without effective restraints 

gave it enormous power. That power was inevitably attractive to politi- 
cians, who could use information on opponents and critics for their 
own advantage, and was also an asset to the Bureau, which depended 
on politicians for support.. In the political arena, as in other facets of 
American life touched by the intelligence community, the existence of 
unchec,ked power led to its abuse. 

By providing polit,ically useful information to the White House 
and congressional supporters, sometimes on demand and some- 
t,imcs gratuitously, the Bureau buttressed its own position in the 
political structure. At the same time, the widespread-and accurate- 
belief in Congress and the administration that the Bureau had avail- 
able to it, deropatorv information on politicians and critics created 
what the late Majority Leader of the House of Representatives, Hale 
Boge, called a “fear” of the Bureau : 

Freedom of speech, freedom of thought, freedom of action for 
men in public life can be compromised q&e as effectively by 
the fear of surveillance as by the fact of surveillance.1 

‘Remarks by Rep. Hale Boggs, 4/22/71, Congressional Record, Vol. 117, Part 
9, p. 11565. 
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Information gathered and disseminated to the, White House ranged 
from purely political intelligence. such as lobbying efforts on bills an 
nd~ninir;tmtion opposed and the strategy of a clelegate challenge at a 
national political convention, to “tidbits” about the activities of poli- 
ticians and public figures which the Bureau believed “of interest” to 
the recipients. 

Such participation in political machinations b- an intelligence 
agency is totally inlpropcr. Responsibilit;v for what amount~ed to a 
betrayal of the public trust in the integrity of the FBI must, be shared 
between the officials who requested such information and those who 
provided it. 

The Bureau’s collrct.ion and dissemination of politically useful in- 
formation was not colored by partisan considerations; rather its effect 
was to ent,rench the Bureau’s own position in the political structure, 
rcqarrlless of which party was in power at the time. However, the 
Bureau also used its pow&s t,o serve ideological purposes, attempting 
corwtly to influence social policy and political action. 

In its efforts to “protect society,” the FBI engaged in activities 
which necessarily affected the processes by which American citizens 
make decisions. In doing so, it distorted and exaggerated facts, made 
use of the mass media, and attacked the leadership of groups which 
it considered threats to the social order. 

Law enforcement officers are, of course, entitled to state their opin- 
ions about what choices the people &ould make on contemporary social 
and political issues. The First ;\mendment guarantees their right to 
enter the market,place of ideas and persuade their fellow citizens of 
t.he correctness of those opinions bv making speeches, writing books, 
and, within certain statutory limit;. supporting political candidates. 
The problem lies not in the open expression of views, but. in the covert 
use of power or position of trust to influence others. This abuse is 
aggravated by the agency’s control over information on which the 
public and its elected representatives rely to make decisions. 

The essence of democracy is the belief that the people must be free 
to make decisions about matters of public policy. The FBI’s ac- 
tions interfered with the democratic process, because attitudes within 
the Bureau toward social chang! led to the belief that such interren- 
tion formed a part of its obligation to protect, society. When a govern- 
mental agency clandestinely tries to impose its views of what is right 
upon the American people, then the democratic process is undermined. 

rwJfY?ldi~?q (a) 
White House officials have requested and obtained politically use- 

ful information from the FBI, including perFona1 life information 
on the activities of political opponents or critics. 

Presidents and White House. aides have asked the FBI to provide 
political or personal information on opponents and critics. including 
“name checks” of Bureau file~.~ They hare also asked the Bureau to 

‘A “name check” is not an inrestigation, but a Bearch of existing FBI files 
throwh the use of the Rnrean’s romm4lensire genpra1 name indtx. Rqlwsts 
for FBI “name checks“ n-ere peculiarly damnginr hecmwe no new inrwtieation 
\va~ done to verify allegations stored arav for years in Rureau files. A former 
FBI official responsible for compliance with such requests said that the RII- 
rean “?nc;wered ‘ . . hr furnishing the White House every piece of information 
in our files on the individuals requested.” Deposition of Thomas E. Bishop, 
former Assistant Director, Crime Records Division, 12/2/75, p. 144.) 
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conduct electronic surreillance or more limited inwstigntions of such 
pt’l3OllS. The FI31 appears to have complied unquestioningly with 
these requests. tlrspitc occasional internal doubts about their pro- 
priety.3 

Precedents for certain political abuses go back to the very outset 
of the tlomestic intelligence program. In 1940 the FBT compl~cd with 
I’wsitlrnt I~oorewlt’s rcq~wst. to file the names of people sending 
critical telegrams to the White House.’ There is evidence of improper 
electronic slIr\-rillnnc~e for the White House in the 1!Wk5 And an aide 
to President T<iscnhon-er a&et1 the FI31 to conduct a questionable 
name check.‘: In 1969. the, FT31 complied unquestioningly with a re- 
qllrst. from -1ttorncF General T<cnnedy to interview a steel executive 
and several reporters who had written stories about a statement by 
the esccutivc. ,1s part of an inrestigation of foreign lobbying cfforlts 
OJI sugar quota legislation in 1961 ancl 19@2. Attorney General Ren- 
nedy requested wiretaps on a Congressional aide, three execut,ive 
officials. and two American lobbyists, including a Washington law 
fim.* 

Kewrtheless. the political misuse of the FBI under the .Johnson 
and Nixon administrations appears to have been more extensive 
than in previous years. 

Cndrr the ,Johnson administration, the FBI was used to gather 
and report political intelligence on the, administration’s partisan op- 
ponents in the last days of the 1964 and 1968 Presidential election 

3 Former FBI executive Cartha DeLoach, who was FBI liaison with the White 
House during part of the Johnson administration, has stated, “I simply followed 
Mr. Hoover’s instructions in complying with White House requests and I never 
asked anv nuestions of the White House as to what thev did with the material 
afterwards.” (DeLoach deposition, 11/25/E, p. 28.) 0; at least one occasion, 
when a White House aide indicated that President Johnson did not want any 
record made 1)~ the FBI of a request for a “run-dnwn” on the links between 
Robert Kennedr and officials involved in the Rnhhr Raker inrestieatinn. the 
Bureau disregArded the order. DrLoach stated tha’t he “ignored the specific 
instructions” in this instance because he “felt that any instructions tve received 
from tl,e White House should be a matter of record.” (DeLoach deposition, 
11/25/X, p. 89.) 

Former Assistant Director Bishop sta’ted. “Who am I to ask the President of 
the United States what statutory basis he has if he wants to know what in- 
formation is in the files of the FBI?” It was a “Drowr dissemination” hecause 
it was “not a dissemination outside the executive )Jranch” and because there was 
“no law, no pn1ic.r of the Department of austice, . . no statute of the United 
States that says that was not permissible.” But even if there had been a statute 

la.ring down standards, Bishop said “it wouldn’t hare made a bit. of difference 
when the Attnrner General or the President asks for it.” 

‘iishnp recalled from’his “own knowledge” instances where President Kennedy, 
.Tnhncnn, and Sison had “called over and asked Mr. Hnorer for a memo on 
rertain people.” (Bishop deposition, 12/Z/75, pp. 153-1.54.) 

’ Memoranda from Stephen Early, Secretary to the President. to Hoover, 5/21/40 
and 6/17/40. 

’ FRI memorandum to Senate Select Committee, 3/26/76 : See pp. 363’7. 
a 1lemnrnndnm from .T. Edgar Hoover to Thomas E. Stephens. Secretary to the 

President. 4/13/W. 
’ Cnurtner Evans deposition. 12/l/75. p. 39. 
‘SW pp. RLB.5. The tap authorized by A4ttnrney General Kennedy on another 

high esecntive official was not related to political ronsidwatinns, nor appar- 
ent1.v was the tap antbnriwd 11,~ Attorney General Kntzenbach in 1965 on the 
cditqr of an anti-communist newsletter n-ho had published a hook alleging 
improln?~t.~ by Robert Kennedy a year earlier. 
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campaigns. Ill the closing days of the 1964 campaign, Presiilential 
aide 13ill Moycrs asked the Bureau to contlr~ct 5~me checks” 011 all 
pCrS0llS cmpl0ycd in Scllntor Goldwater’s Senate ofice. and infolnia- 
tion 011 two staff members was reported to the IYliite ITollse.9 Simi- 
larly. in the last two weeks of the 1968 campaign, the ,Johnson TT’llite 
House requested an investigation (includilq mdirect electronic sur- 
veillance and direct physical surreillance) of Mrs. Ahunx Chenna$t, a 
prolllincnt Republican leader, and her relationships with certain South 
Trietnamcse officin1s.l” This investigation also included an FBI check 
of Vice Presidential candidate Spiro Agnew’s long distance telephone 
call records, apparently 
,John~on.~~ 

at the personal request of President 

,\nothcr investigation for the ,Johnson White House involved ex- 
ecutive branch officials who took part in the criminal investigation 
of former ;Tohnson Senat.e aide Bobby Baker. When Baker’s trial 
began in 1967, it was revealed that one of the government witnesses 
had been “wired” to record his conwrsations with Baker. Presidential 
aide, Xarvin Watson told the FBI that ,Johnson was quite “exercised,” 
and the Bureau was ordered to conduct a discreet “run-don-n” on the 
former head of the, dustice Department’s Criminal Division and four 
Treasury Department officials who had been responsible for “wiring” 

’ hlemorandum from Hoover to Meyers, 10/27/64, cited in FBI summary 
memorandum. l/31/75. 

“Bureau flies indicate that the apparent “reason” for the “White House 
interest” was to determine “ whether the South Vietnamese had secretlv been 
in touch with supporters of Presidential candidate Nixon, possibly through 
hlrs. Chennault, as President Johnson was apparently suspicious that the South 
Vietnamese were trying to sabotage his p&ice negotiations in the hope that 
Nixon would win the election and then take a harder line towards North 
Vietnam.” (FBI memorandum, subject : Mrs. Anna Chennault. 2/l/75.) The 
FBI has claimed that its investigation of Mrs. Chennault was “consistent with 
FBI rexponsibilitips to determine if her activities were in violation of certain 
provisions of the Foreign Agents Registration Act and of the Neutrality Act.” 

Direct electronic sun-eillance of Mrs. Chennanlt n-as rejected, according to a 
contemnoraneous FBI memorandum. because FBI executive Cartha DeLoacb 
pointed out that “it was widely known that she was involved in Republican 
political circles and, if it became known that the FBI was surreilling her this 
would put us in a most untenable and embarrassing position.” (Memorandum 
from DeLoach to Tolson. 10/30/68.) 

Electronic surveillance’ &s. $o&ver, directed at the South Vietnamese offi- 
cials and was approved by Attorney General Ramse.v Clark. Clark has testified 
that he did not know of the physical surveillance aspect of the FBI’s inrestiga- 
tion. hut that he did authorize the electronic surveillance of the South Vietnamese 
officials. (Clark testimnni. 12/3/75, Hearings. Vol. 6, p. 252.) 

I* FBI executive Cartha DeLoach has stated that a White House aide made 
the initial reouest for the check of telenhnne comnany records late one night. 
According to jl)eLnaeh, the request was ‘Ito find o& &ho. either Mr. Agne& or 
Mr. Bison, when they had heen in Albuquerque (Sew Mexico) several dars prior 
to that, had called from Alhnquerr]ne while they were there.” When DeLoach 
refused to contact the telephone company “late in the evening,” President .Tohnsnn 
“ramp on the phone and proceeded to remind me that he Kas Commander in 
Chief and 11~ shnnld get That 11~ wanted. and he wanted me tn do it immedi- 
ately.” DeLoach then talked with Director Hoover, who told hi’m to “stand 
your ground.” The next day. however, Hoover ordered that the records he 
checked. hut the only calls identified were “made hy Mr. Apnew’s staff.” T~PTP 
were reported to the White House. (DeT,nach Deposition. 11/2.5/75. pp. 74-75.) 
Agnen-‘s arrival and departure times in and out of Alhuqnerqne were also 
“verified at the request of the White House.” (FBI summary memorandum. 
subject : Mrs. Anna Chennault, 2/l/75). 
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the witness. The Bureau was specifically insisted to include any asso- 
ciations between those persons and Robert I<ennedy.12 

SC\-era1 ,Johnson Wllite House requests were directed at critics of 
the war in Vietnam. at ncwsn1en. and at other opponents. ,4ccording 
to a Bureau memorandul~1, White House aide Marvin Watson at- 
tempted to disguise his, and the President’s interest in such requests 
by asking the FBI to channel its replies through a lower level White 
House stat7 member.‘” 

In 1966. Watson asked the FBI to monitor the televised hearings 
of the Senate Foreign Relations Committee on Vietnam policy and 
prepare a memorandum comparing statements of the President’s Sen- 
ate critics with “the Communist Party line.” 1c Similarly, in 196i when 
seven Senators made statements criticizing the bombing of North 
Yietnam. Watson requested (and the Bureau delivered) a “blind mem- 
orandum” setting forth information from FBI files on each of the 
Senators. ,4mong the data supplied n-ere the following items : 

Senator Clark was quoted in the press as stating that the 
three major threats to America are the military-industrial 
complex, the Federal Bureau of Investigations and the Central 
Intelligence Agency. 

Senator McGovern spoke at, a rally sponsored *by the Chi- 
cago Committee for a Sane Nuclear Policy, a pacifist group. 

Senator McGovern stated that the “United States was mak- 
ing too much of the communist take-over of Cuba.” 

[Another Senator now deceased] has, on many occasions, 
publicly criticized United States policy toward Vietnam. He 
frequently speaks before groups throughout. the United States 
on this subject. He has been reported as intentionally enter- 
ing into controversial areas so that his services as a speaker 
for which he receives a fee, will be in clen~and.‘g 

The ,Johnson administration also requested information on contacts 
between members of Conprcss and certain foreign officials known to 
oppose the United States presence in Vietnam. hccording to FBI 

I* FRI Director Hoover brought the matter to the attention of the White 
House in a letter describing why the FBI had refused to “wire” the n-itness 
(there was not adequate “secnrit~“) and how the Criminal Dirision had then 
used the Rurean of Sarrotics to do so. (JIemorandnm from Hoover to Watson, 
l/12/67.) This was the instance where FRT esecntire Cartha DeLoach made 
a record, after Watson told him that “the President does not want any record 
made.” (Memorandum from DeLoach to Tolson, l/17/67; see also FBI summary 
men~nrandnn~. Z/3/75.) 

lR A1ccnrdinp to this memorandum, Watson told Cartha DeLoach in 1967 that 
“he and the President” wanted all “communications addressed to him bg the 
Ilirertor” to he addressed instead to a lower level White House staff member. 
Watson told DeLnach that the “reason for this change” n-as that the staff 
meml~er “did not hare the direct connection with the President that he had and, 
cnnw~nently. people who saw such communications would not suspicion (sic) 
that Watsnn or the President had reanested such information. nor were inter- 
ested in snrh information.” (Rlemnrandum from De Loach to Tnlsnn. 3/17/67.) 

I’ FRI summar,r memorandum. subjert : Coverage of Television Presentation. 
Senate Foreign Relations Committee. l/31/76. Former FRI executire Cartha 
DeI,onch has stated. regarding this incident. “We felt that it was beyond the 
jurisdiction of the FRI. but nhriously Mr. Hoover felt that this was a request 
by the President and he desired it tn he done.” (DeLoach deposition, 11/25/E, 
p. x3) 

” Blind FBI memorandum, 2/10/67. 



records, President *Johnson believed these fore@ officials had pen- 
orated “much of the protest concerning his Vietnam policy, particu- 
larlv the hearings in the Senate.” l6 

1%te House requests were not limite,d to critical Congressmen. 
Ordinary citizens who sent telegrams protesting the Vietnam war 
to the White House we.re also the subject of Watson requests for FBI 
name check reports.” Presidential aide Jake *Jacobsen asked for name 
checks on persons whose names appeared in the Congressional Record 
as signers of a letter to Senator Wayne Morse expressing support for 
his crit.icism of TJ.S. Vietnam policy.x8 On at least one occasion, a 
request was channeled through httorney General Ramsey Clark, who 
supplied Watson (at the latter’s request) with a summary of mfor- 
mation on the National Committee for a Sane Nuclear Policy.lg 

Other individuals who were the subject of s~uzl~ name check requests 
under the Johnson Administration included NBC Commentator David 
Brinkley:y,2O Associated Press reporter Peter nrnett,2l columnist 
Joseph KraftYZ2 Life magazine Washington bureau chief Richard 
Stolley,23 Chiago Daily _ News Washington bureau chief Peter 
Lisagor,24 and Ben W. Gilbert of the Washington Post.Z5 The John- 
son White House also requested (and received) name check reports on 
the anthors of books critical of the Warren Commission re.port; some 
of these reports included derogatory information about the personal 
lives of the individuals.26 

The Nixon administration continued the practice of using the FBI 
to produce political information. In 1969 John Ehrlichman, counsel 
to President Nixon, asked the FBI to conduct a “name check” on 
Joseph Duffy, chairman of Americans for Democratic Action. Data 
in Bureau files covered Duffy’s “handling arrangements” for an anti- 
war teach-in in 1965, his position as State Coordinator of the group 

I8 President Johnson’s request also went beyond “legislators,” and included 
contarts hv anv “nrominent 1J.S. citizens.” (FBI summarv memorandum. sub- 
ject : Infc&ati”on *Concerning Contacts Be&en [Certain koreign officials] and 
Members or Staff of the United States Congress Furnished to the White House 
at the Request of the President, 2/3/75.) *he FBI’s reports indicated that its 
information came “through coverage” of the foreign officials and that the Bureau, 
in this case, had “conducted no investigation of members of Congress.” (FBI 
summary memorandum, 2/3/75.) FBI “coverage” apparently included electronic 
surveillance. 

President Nixon also requested information on contacts between foreign nffiicials 
and Congressmen, but his request does not appear to have related to Presidential 
critics. Rather, the Nixon request grew out of concern about “an increase in 
lforeienl interest on Canitol Hill” which had been exnressed to President Nixon 
by at’ liast one Senatdr; and the FBI’s report “i&luded two examples of 
[foreienl intelligence initiatives directed against Capiltol Hill without identifring 
the [foreigners] or American involved.” (‘RI summary memorandum. 2/3/75.) 

l’Mrmnranda from Hoover to Watson. 6/4/65 and 7/M/65. 
Is Memorandum from Hoover to Wats&‘7jl5/66. &&g’Jacobsen request. 
‘8Jlemorandum from Clark to Watson. 4/R/67. enrlnsing memorandum from 

Dirertnr, FBI to the Attorney General. 4/7/67. (LBJ Library.) 
20JIemoranda from Hoover to Watson, 2/15/&5 and 5/29/65. 
p Memorandum from Hoover to Watson. 7/22/f%. 
za Memorandum from Hoover to Watson, l/27/67. 
23 Memorandum from Hoover to Watson. 4/6/66. 
*‘Memornndum from Hoover to Watson. ‘2)24/66. 
*5Memorandum from Hoover to Watson. 4/6/66. 
‘a JIemnrandum from Hoover to Watson, 11/S/66 ; Delnach, 12/3/75. Hear- 

ings, Vol. 6, pp. X&182. 
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“Negotiation Now” in 1067, and his activity as chairman of Con- 
necticut Citizens for McCarthy in 1968.2Ga 

Presidential aide H. R. Haldeman requested a name check on CBS 
reporter Daniel Schorr. In this instance, the FBI mistakenly con- 
sidered t.he request to be for a full background investigation and began 
to conduct interviews. These interviews made the inquiry public. Sub- 
sequently, White House officials stated (falsely) that Schorr was 
under consideration for an executive appointment.z7 In another case, 
a Bureau memorandum states that Vice President Agnew asked the 
FBI for information about Rev. Ralph David abernatby, then head 
of the Southern Christian Leadership Conference, for use in “de- 
stroying Sbernathy’s credibility.:’ 28 (Agnew has denied that he made 
such a request, but agrees that he received the information.)29 

Several White House requests involved the initiation of electronic 
surveillance. Apparently on the instructions of President Nixon’s aide 
John Ehrlichman and i)irector Hoover, FBI ,Issistant Director Wil- 
liam C. Sullivan arranged for the microphone surveillance of the hotel 
room of columnist Joseph Kraft while he was visiting a foreign 
country.30 Kraft was also the. target of physical surveillance by the 
FBI.31 There is no record of any specific “national security” rationale 
for the surveillance. 

Similarly, although the “17” wiretaps were authorized ostensibly to 
investigate national securitv “leaks.” there is no record in three of the 
cases of any national sec&ty claim having been advanced in their 
support. Two of the targets were domestic affairs advisersat the White 
House., with no foreign affairs duties and no access to foreign policy 
materlals.32 B third was a White House speechwriter who had been 
overheard on an existing tap agreeing to provide a reporter with back- 
ground on a presidential speech concerning, not foreign policy, but 
revenue sharing and welfare reform.33 

*“* Letter from J. Edgar Hoover to John D. Ehrlichman, 10/6/69; letter from 
Clarence 11. Kelly to Joseph Duffy, 7/14/75, enclosing FBI records transmitted 
under Freedom of Information Act. 

2i House Judiciary Committee Hearings, Book VII, White House Surveillance 
Activities (1954). n. 1111. 

?8 According ty -Director Hoover’s memorandum of the conversation. Aenew 
asked Hoover for “some assistance” in obtaining information about Rev. Aber- 
nathg. Hoover recorded : “The Vice President said he thought he was going to 
have- to start destroying Abernathy’s credibility, so anything I can give him 
would he appreciated. I told him I would be glad to.” ( JIemorandnm from Hoover 
to Tolson, et al, 5/18/70.) Subsequently. the FBI Director sent Agnew a report 
on Rev. Abernathy containing not only the by-product of Bureau investigations, 
but also derogatory public record information. (Letter from Hoover to Agnew, 
5/l R/iO. 1 
-’ 1D Staff summary of Spiro Agnew interview, 10/15/75. 

” Memoranda from Sullivan to Hoovpr. 6/30/69 and 7/Z/69. 
31 Memorandum from Sullivan to DeLnach, 11/5/69.‘The Kraft surveillance is 

also discussed in Part II, pp. 121-122. 
32 Coverage in these two cases was requested by neither Henry Kissinger nor 

Alesander Haig (as most of the “17” were), but by other White House officials: 
Attorney General MitcheIl approved the first at the request of “higher authority.” 
(>lemorandum from Hoover to Mitchell, 7/23/69.) The second was specifically 
reonested by H. R. Haldeman. (Memorandum frnm Hoover to Mitchell, 12/14/70. 

sJ This tap was also apparently requested by White House officials other than 
Kissinger or Haig. (~Zemnrandnm from SuIIivan to DeLoach. 8/l/69.) The “17” 
wiretaps are also discussed at p. 122. 
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Subfi)lding (6) 
In some cases. political or personal information was not specifically 

requested, but was nevertheless collected and disseminated to admin- 
istration officials as part of investigations they had requested. Neither 
the FBI nor the recipients differentiated in these cases between na- 
tional security or law enforcement information and purely political 
intelligence. 

In some instances, the initial request for or dissemination of infor- 
mation was premised upon law enforcement or national security pur- 
poses. However, pursuant to such a request, information was furnished 
which obviously could serve only partisan or personal interests. As 
one Bureau official summarized its attitude, the FBI “did not decide 
what, was political or what represented potential strife and violence. 
We are an invest.igative agency and we passed on all data.” 34 

Examples from the Eisenhower, Kennedy., Johnson, and Nixon ad- 
ministrations illustrate this failure to distmguish between political 
and nonpolitical intelligence. They include. the FBI’s reports to the 
White House in 1956 on XA4ACP lobbying activities, the intelligence 
about the legislative process produced by the “sugar lobby” wiretaps in 
1961-1962, the purely political data disseminated to the White House 
on the credentials challenge in the 1964 Democratic Convention, and 
dissemination of both political and personal information from the 
“leak” wiretaps in 1969-1972. 

(i) The NAACP 
In early 1956 Director Hoover se.nt the White House a memoran- 

dum describing the “potential for violence” in the current “racial 
situation”.3” Later reports to the White House, however, went far 
beyond intelligence about possible violence; they included extensive 
inside information about SAACP lobbying efforts, such as the fol- 
lowing : 

A report on “meetings held in Chicago“ in connection with 
a planned Lradership Conference on Civil Ri&ts to be held in 
Washington under the sponsorship of the NAACP.36 

An extensive report on the Leadership Conference, based 
on the Bureau’s “reliable sources” and describing plans of 
Conference delegations to visit Senators Paul Douglas. Her- 
bert Lehman. Wayne Morse, Hubert Humphrey, and ,John 
Bricker. The report also summarized a sr)wcl~ bv Rnv Wil- 
kins. other conference proceedings, and the report of “an 
informant” that the Vnited ,4nto Workers was a “predomi- 
nant organization’! at the conference.37 

Another report on the conference included an account of 
That transpired at meetings between conference delegations 
and Senators Paul Douglas and Everett, Dirksen.38 

31 DeLoach. 12/3/75. Hearings. Pd. 6. p. 180. 
SMemorandum from Honver to Dillon Anderson, Special Assistant to the 

President. 1/R/R& This report was also nror-ided to the ilttorney General. the 
Secretary of Defense. and military intelligence. 

38 Memorandnm from Hoover to Anderson. 3/2/.56. 
n 3lemnrandnm from Hoover tn Anderson. 3/5/56. 
a8 Jlemornndum ffom Hoover to Anderson, 3/6/56. 
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A report including the information that two New Jersey 
congressmen would sign a petition to the attorney General.3s 

A presidential aide suggested that Hoover brief the Cabinet on 
“developments in the South.” 4o Director Hoover’s Cabinet briefing 
also included political intelligence. He covered not. only the NAACP 
conference, but also the speeches and political activities of Southern 
Senators and Governors and the formation of the Federation for Con- 
stitutional Government with Southern Congressmen and Governors on 
its advisory board.41 

(ii) The Augur Lobby 
The electronic surveillance of persons involved in a foreign country’s 

lobbying activities on sugar quota legislation in 1961-1962, authorized 
by LIttorney General Robert Kennedy for the White House, also pro- 
duced substantial political intelligence unrelated to the activities of 
foreign officials.4z Such information came from wiretaps both on for- 
eign officials and on American citizens, as well as from the microphone 
surveillance of the chairman of the House Agriculture Committee 
when he met with foreipn officials in a New York hotel room.43 The 
following are examples”of the purely political (and personal) 
product : 

a particular lobbyist “mentioned he is working on the Sen- 
ate and has the Republicans all lined up.” 41 

The same lobbyist said that “he had seen two additional 
representatives on the House Agriculture Committee, one of 

by- 

58 Memorandum from Hoover to Anderson, 3/7/56. A National Security Council 
staff member responsible for intern.al security matters summarized these re- 
ports as providing information “regarding attempts being made by the Na- 
tional Association for the Advancement of Colored People to send instructed 
delegations to high-ranking Government officials ‘to tactfully draw out their 
positions concerning civil rights.’ ” (Memorandum from J. Patrick Coyne to 
Anderson, 3/6/56.) 

1o After consulting the Attorney General, this aide advised the Secretary to the 
Cabinet that the FBI had “reported developments in recent weeks in several 
southern States, indicating a marked deterioration in relationships between the 
races, and in some instances fomented by communist or communist-front organi- 
zations.” (Memorandum from Anderson to Maxwell Rabb, l/16/56.) The Secre- 
tary to the Cabinet, who had “experience in handling minority matters” for the 
White House, agreed that “each Cabinet Member should be equipped with the 
plain facts.” (Memorandum from Rabb to Anderson. l/17/56.) A National Reru- 
rity Council staff member who handled internal secuAt$ matters reported shortly 
thereafter that the FBI Director was “prepared to b;ief the Cabinet along the 
general lines” of his written communications to the White House. (Memorandum 
from .J. Patrick Coyne to Anderson, 2/l/56.) 

n Memorandum from Director, FBi, to tde Executive Assistant to the Attorney 
General, 3/g/56. enclosing FBI memorandum described as the “basic statement” 
used 1)s the Director “in the Cabinet Briefing this morning on Racial Tension and 
Civil Rirhts.” For a further discussion of the exaggeration of Communist influ- 
ence on the NAACP in this briefing, see pp. 250-257, note 151a. 

“The electronic surveillances were generally related to foreign affairs con- 
cerns. See pp. 6445. 

u The Americans include three Agriculture Department officials, the secretary 
fo the Chairmgn of the House Agricnlture Committee, and two registered lobby- 
ing agents for foreign interests. For Attorney General Kennedy’s relationship 
to the microphone surveillance of the Congressman, see p. 61. note 233. One 
of the wiretaps directed at a registered lobbying agent was placed on the office 
telenbnne of a Washington law firm. (Seep. 201) 

“FBI memorandum, 6115162. 
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whom was ‘dead set against us’ and who ma;v reconsider, and 
the other was neutral and ‘may vote for us.’ ” 45 

The Agriculture Committee chairman believed “he had ac- 
complished nothing” and that “he had been fighting over the 
Rules Committee and this had interfered with his attempt 
to organize.” 40 

The “friend” of a foreign official “was under strong pres- 
sure from the present administration. and since the ‘friend’ is 
a Democ,rat, it would be very difficult for him to present a 
strong front to a Democrat.ic Administration.” d7 

A lobbyist stated that Secretary of State Rusk “had received 
a friendly reception by the Committee and there appearecl to 
be no problem with regard to the sugar bill.” 45 

A foreign official was reported to be in contact with two Con- 
gressmen’s secretaries “for reasons other than business.” The 
official asked one of the secretaries to tell the other that he 
“would not be able to call her that evening” and that one of 
his associates “was planning to take [the two secretaries and 
another Congressional aide] to Bermuda.” 49 

The FBI’s own evaluation of these wiretaps indicates that they “un- 
doubtedly . . . contributed heavily to the Bdministration’s success” in 
passing the legislation it desired.so 

(iii) The 1964 Democmtic Conmention 

Political reports were disseminated by the FBI to the White House 
from the 1964 Democratic convention in Atlantic City. These reports, 
from the FBI’s “special squad” at the convention. apparently resulted 
from a civil disorders intelligence investigation which got out of hand 
because no one was milling to shut off the partisan by-producL51 They 
centered on the Mississippi Freedom Democratic Party’s credentials 
challenge. Examples of the political intelligence which flowed from 
FBI surveillance at the 1964 convention include the following : 52 

(5 FBI memorandum, 6/15/62. 
” 1Iemorandum from Hoover to Attorney General Kennedy, 2118161. This in- 

i’ormation came from the Bureau’s “coverage” (by microphone surveillance) of 
the Congressman’s hotel room meeting. 

” FBI memorandum. 2115162. 
* Memorandum from J. Edgar Hoover to Robert Kennedy, 3/13/61. 
” Memorandum from J. Edgar Hoover to Robert Kennedy, 3/13/t%. 
M Memorandum from W. R. Wannall to W. C. Sullivan, 12/22/66. According to 

a Bureau memorandum of a meeting between Attorney General Kennedy and 
FBI Assistant Director Courtney Evans, Kennedy stated in April 1961 that “now 
the law has passed he did not feel there was justification for continuing this 
extensive investigation.” (Memorandum from Evans to Parsons, 4/15/61.) 

‘l There is no clear evidence as to what President Johnson had in mind when, 
as a contemporaneous FBI memorandum indicates, he directed “the assignment 
of the special squad to Atlantic City.” (DeLoach to Mohr, 8/29/64) Cartha De- 
Loach has testified that Presidential aide Walter Jenkins made the original re- 
quest to him. but that he said it should be discussed with Director Hoover and 
that “Mr. Jenkins or the President, to the best of my recollection. later called 
Mr. Hoover and asked that this be done.” Deloarh claimed that the nurnose was 
to gather “intelligence concerning matters of strife, violence. etc.” which might 
arise out of the credentials challenge. (DeJ,oqch, 12/3/75. hearings, Vol. 6. 17. 175.) 

6aThe operations of the FBI in Atlantic City are described ingreater ditail in 
Section II, pp. 117-119. 
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Dr. Martin Luther King and an associate %ere drafting 
a telegram to President, Johnson . . . to register a mild 
protest. According to King, the President pledged complete 
neutrality regarding the selecting of the proper Mississippi 
delegation to be seated at the convention. King feels that 
the Credentials Committee will turn down the Mississippi 
Freedom Party and that they are doing this because the 
President exerted pressure on the committee along this 
line.” 53 

,Qnother associate of Dr. King contacted a member of the 
MFDP who “said she thought King should see Governor 
Endicott Peabody of Massachusetts, blayor Robert Wagner 
of New York City, Governor Edmund G. (Pat) Brown of 
California, Mayor Richard Dale-y of Chicago, and Governor 
John W. King of New Hampshire.” The purpose was “t.0 
urge them to call the White House directly and put pressure 
on the White House in behalf of the MFDP.” 5* 

“MFDP leaders have asked Reverend King to call Gover- 
nor Egan of Alaska and Governor Burns of Hawaii in an at- 
tempt to enlist their support. According to the MFDP spokes- 
man, the Negro Mississippi Party needs these two states plus 
California and New York for the roll call tonight.” 55 

An SCLC staff member told a representative of the MFDP : 
“Off the record,, of course, you know we will accept the 
Green compromise proposed.” This referred to “the proposa1 
of Congressxvoman Edith Green of Oregon.” 56 

In a discussion between Dr. King and another civil rights 
leader, the question of “a T7ice-Presidential nominee came 
up and King asked what [the other leader] thought of Hugh 
[sic] Humphrey, and [the other leader] said Hugh Hum- 
phrcv is not gomy to get it, that Johnson needs a Catholic. . . 
and therefore the Vice-President will be Muskie of Maine.” 57 

An unsigned White House memorandum disclosing Dr. King’s 
strategy in connection with a meeting to be at,tended by President 
.Johnson suggests that there was political use of these FBI reports.58 

(6~) The “17” Wiretaps. 
The Nixon White House learned a substantial amount of purely po- 

litical intelligence from wiretaps to investigate “leaks” of classified 
information placed on three newsmen and fourteen executive officials 
during 19C,9-1971.5v The following illustrate the range of data 
supplied : 

One of the targets “recentlv stated that he was to spend an 
hour with Senator Kennedy’s Vietnam man, as Senator 
Kennedy is giving a speech on the 15th.” co 

m Memorandum from DeLoach to Jenkins. 8/24/f%. 
bl Memorandum from Der,oach to .Tenkins, 8/25/t%. 
rz RIemorandum from DeLoach to Jenkins, g/25/64. 
sB Ifemorandnm mm &Loach to Jenkins, 8/25/M. 
m ~~Wnnrandnm from DeLoach to Jenkins. S/25/64. 
68 Blind memorandnm from LRJ Library bearing handwritten date B/26/64 and 

the trpev’ritten date g/19/64. Hearings. Vol. 6, Exhibit 6%2, p, 713. 
‘*In at least two instances. the wiretaps continued on targets after they left 

the Esrcutire Rranch and became advisers to Senator Edmund Muskie, then the 
leadiw Democratic prospect for the Presidency. See Part TT. p. 122. 

m Memorandum from Hoover to Nixon, Kissinger, and Mitchell, 10/9/69. 
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Another target said that Senator Fulbright postponed con- 
gressional hearings on Vietnam because he did not) believe 
they would be popular at that time.61 

,4 well-known television news correspondent “was very 
distressed over having been ‘singled out’ by the Vice Press- 
dent.” 62 

,4 friend of one of the targets said the Washington Star 
planned to do an article critical of Henry Kissinger.63 

One of the targets helped former Bmbassador Sargent 
Shriver write a press release criticizing a recent speech by 
President Nixon in which the President “attacked” certain 
Congressmen.64 

One of the targets told a friend it “is clear the Administra- 
tion will win on the ABM by a two-vote margin. He said 
‘They’ve got [a Senator] and they’ve got [another Sen- 
ator] .‘.” 69 

A friend of one of the targets wanted to see if a Senator 
would “buy a new amendment” and stated that “they” were 
“going to meet with” another Senator.66 

A friend of one of the targets described a Senator as “mar- 
ginal” on the Cooper-Church Amendment and stated that 
another Senator might be persuaded to support it.67 

One of the targets said Senator Mondale was in a “dilemma” 
over the “trade bill ” 68 

A friend of one of the targets said he had spoken to former 
President Johnson and “Johnson would not back Senator 
Muskie for the Presidency as he intended to stay out of 
politics.” 6D 

There is at least one clear example of the political use of such 
information. After the FBI Director informed the White House 
that former Secretary of Defense Clark Clifford planned to write a 
magazine article criticizing President Nixon’s Vietnam policy,7o White 
House aide Jeb Stuart Magruder advised John Ehrlichman and H. R. 
Haldeman that “we are in a position to counteract this article in any 
number of ways.” i1 It is also significant that., after May 1970, the 
FBI Director’s letters summarizing the results of the wiretaps were 
no longer sent to Henry Kissinger, the President’s national security 
advisor, but to the President’s political advisor, H. R. Haldeman.72 

. . . 

a1 Memorandum from Hoover to Nixon and Kissinger, 12/3/69. 
” Memorandum from Hoover to Nixon and Kissinger, 2/26/70. 
w Memorandum from Hoover to H. R. Haldeman. 6/2/70. 
M Memorandum from Hoover to Haldeman. g/4/70: 
85 Memorandum from Hoover to Nixon and Kissinger, 7/18/69. 
BB Memorandum from Hoover to Haldeman, S/18/70. 
” Memorandum from Hoover to Haldeman, 6/B/70. 
‘a Memorandum from Hoover to Haldeman, U/24/70. 
(I0 Memorandum from Hoover to Haldeman, 12/22/70. 
” Memorandum from Hoover to Nixon, Kissinger, and Mitchell, 12/29/69. 
‘I Memorandum from Magruder to Haldeman and Ehrlichman, l/15/70. Ehr- 

lichman advised Haldeman, “This is the kind of early warning n-e need more of- 
your game planners are now in an excellent position to map anticipatory action.” 
(JIemorandum from “E” (Ehrlichman) to “H” (Haldeman), undated.) Haldc- 
man resnnnded. “I agree with *John’s point. Let’s get going.” (Memorandum from 
“H” to “M” (Magruder), undated). 

‘* Report of the House Judiciary Committee, 8/20/74, p. 147. 
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These four illustrations from administrations of both political par- 
ties indicate clearly that direct c,hannrls of communication between 
top FBI officials and the White House, combined with the failure to 
screen out extraneous information, and coupled mith overly broad in- 
vestigations in t.he first instance, have been fiources of flagrant political 
abuse of the intelligence process.73 

Subfinding (c) 
The FBI has also volunteered information to Presidents and their 

staffs, without having been asked for it, sometimes apparently to curry 
favor with the current administration. Similarly, the FBI has as- 
sembled information on its critics and on political figures it believed 
might influence public attitudes or Congressional support. 

There have been numerous instances over the past three decades 
where the FBI volunteered to its superiors purely political or personal 
information believed by the, FBI Director to be ‘lof interest” to them.i4 

The following are examples of the information in Director Hoover’s 
letters under the Truman, Eisenhower, Kennedy, and Johnson 
administrations.‘5 

To Major General Harry Vaughn., Military Aide to Presi- 
dent Truman, a report on the activities of a former Roosevelt 
aide who was trying to influence the Truman administration’s 
appoint.ments.76 

To Matthew J. Connelly, Secretary to President Truman, a 
report from a “very confidential source” about a meeting of 
newspaper representatives in Chicago to plan publication of 
stories exposing organized crime and corrupt l)oliticians.7’ 

To Dillon Anderson, Special Assistant to President Eisen- 
hower, the advance text of a speech to be delivered by a promi- 
nent labor leader.i8 

T3 It should be noted, however, that in at least one case the Bureau did dis- 
tinguish between political and non-political information. In 1968, when an aide 
to Vice President Humphrey asked that a “special squad” be sent to the Demo- 
cratic Sational Convention in Chicago. Director Hoover not only declined, but 
he also specifically instructed the SAC in Chicago not “to get into anything 
political” but to confine his reports to “extreme action or violence.” (Memo- 
randum from Hoover to Tolson., et al, 8/15/68.) There were no comparable in- 
structions at Atlantic City. 

” Former Attorney General Francis Biddle recalled in his autobiography how 
J. Edgar Hoover shared with him some of the “intimate details” of what his 
fellow Cabinet members did and said, “their likes and dislikes, their weaknesses 
and their associations.” Riddle confessed that he enjoyed hearing these deroga- 
tory and sometimes “embarrassing” tidhits and that Hoover “knew how to flatter 
his superior.” (Francis Biddle. In Brief duthority [Garden City: Doubleday, 
19621, pp. 258-259. ) 

A former FBI official has described one aspect of the Bureau’s practice : 
“Mr. Hoover nonld say what do we have in our files on this guy? Just -ivhat do 

we have? Xot blind memorandum. not Dublic source information. evervthinr we’ve 
got. And we would maybe write a 2,5 page memo. When he got it and saw‘what’s 
in it, he’d say we’d better send that to the White House and the Attorney General 
so they can have in one place everything that the FBI has now on this guy. . 
(Bishop deposition, 12/2/75, pp. 141-142.)” 

“None of these letters indicate that they were in response to requests, as is 
the rasr with other similar letters examined br the Committee. All were volun- 

teered as matters which Director Hoover considered to be “of interest” to the 
recipients. 

” Memorandum from Hoover to Vaughn, 2/15/47. 
n Memorandum from Hoover to Connelly, l/27/50. 
” Memorandum from Hoover to Anderson, 4/21/55. 
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To Robert Cutler, Special *4ssistant to President Eisen- 
hower, a report of a “confidential source” on plans of Jlrs. 
Eleanor Roose\.elt to holcl a reception for the head of a civil 
rights group.‘” 

To Attorney General Robert Kennedy, information from a 
Bureau “source” regarding plans of a group to publish allega- 
tions about the President’s personal life.80 

To Attorney General Kcnned~, a sunlmary of material in 
FBI files on a prominent entertamer which the FBI Director 
thought “m.ay be of interest”.“’ 

To Jlarvm Watso?, Special Assistant to President .Johnson, 
a summary of data m Bureau files on the author of a play 
satirizing the President.82 

As these illust.rations indicate! the FBI Director provided snch data 
to administrations of both political parties without apparent partisan 
favoritism.83 

Additionally, during the Nixon Administration, the FBI’s INLET 
(Intelligence Letter) Program for sending regular short summaries 
of FBI intelligence to the White House was used on one occasion to 
provide information on the purely personal relationship between an 
entertainer and the subject of an FBI domestic intelligence investi- 
gation.84 SACS were inst,ructed under the INLET program to submit 
to Bureau headquarters items with an “unusual twist” or regarding 
“prominent” persons.85 

One reason for t,he Bureau’s volunteering information to the M7hite 
House was to please the Administ.ration and thus presumably to build 
high-level political support for the FBI. Thus, a 1975 Bureau report 
on thr Atlantic City episode states : 

One [agent said], “I would like to state that at no time did I 
ever consider (it) to be a political operation but it, was obvious 
that DeLoach wanted to impress Jenkins and Meyers with the 
Bureau’s ability to develop information which would be of 
interest to them.” Furthermore, in response to a question as to 
whether the Bureau’s services mere bemg utilized for political 
reasons, [another] ansxvered, “No. I do recall, however, that 
on one occasion I was present when DeLoach held a lengthy 
telephone conversation wit.11 Walter Jenkins. They appeared 
to be discussing the President’s ‘image.’ At the end of the 
conversation DtLoach told ~1s something to the effect, ‘that 
may have sounded a little political to you but this doesn’t, do 
the Bureau any harm.’ ” 86 

In addition to providing information useful to superiors, the Bureau 
assembled information on its own critics and on polit.ical figures it 
believed might influence public attitudes or congressional support. 
FBI Director Hoover had massive amounts of information at his 

” Memorandum from Hoover to Cutler, 2/13/58. 
@ Memorandum from Hoover to Robert Kennedy, 11/20/a. 
m Memorandum from Hoover to Robert Kennedy. 2/10/61. 
” Memorandum from Hoover to Watson, l/9/67: 
R1 For additional examples, See Section II, pp. 51-53. 
R1 Staff memorandum : Review of INLET letters, 11/18/75. 
Rj Memorandum from FRI Headquarters to all SAC’s, 11/26/69. 
Be Memorandum from Bassett to Callahan, l/29/75. 
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fingertips. As indicated abore, he could have the Bureau’s files checked 
on anyone of interest to him. He personally received political infor- 
mation and “personal tidbits” from the special agents in charge of 
FBI field offices.s’ This information, both from the files and Hoover’s 
personal sources, was available to discredit crit.ics. 

The following arc examples of how the Bureau disseminated in- 
formation to discredit its opponents : 

In 1949 the FBI provided Attorney General d. Howard 
McGrath and Presidential aide Harry Vaughn inside infor- 
mation on plans of the Lawyers Guild to denounce Bureau 
surveillance so they would have an opportunity to prepare a 
rebuttal well in advance of the expected criticism.s8 

In 1960, when the Knoxl-ille Area Human Relations Coun- 
cil in Tennessee charged that the FBI was practicing racial 
discrimination. the Bureau conducted name checks on mem- 
bers of the Council’s board of directors and sent the results 
to Attorney General William Rogers, including derogatory 
personal alle,yations and political affiliations from as far back 
as the late thirties and early forties.89 

When a reporter wrote stories critical of the Bureau, he was 
not only refused any further intervieq but an FBI official 
in charge of press relations also spread derogatory personal 
information about him to other newsmen.“” 

The Bureau also maintained a “not to contact list,” of “those in- 
dividuals known to be hostile to the Bureau.” Director Hoover spe- 
cifically ordered that “each name” on the list “should be the subject of 
a memo.” 81 

=Fnrmer FBI official Mark Felt has stated that the SAC’s could have sent 
personal letters to Hoover containing such “personal tidbits” “to curry favor 
with him,” and on one occasion he did so himself with respect to a “scandalous” 
incident. (W. Mark Felt testimony. 2/3/76. D. 91.) 

The following excerpt from one ‘S~%(%s’let&r is a’n example of political informa- 
tion fed to the Director: “I have heard several comments and items which I 
wanted to bring to your attention. As I imagine is true in all States at this time, 
the political situation in [this state] is getting to be very interesting. As you 
know, Senator [deleted) is coming up for re-election as is Representative [de- 
lrted]. For a long time it appeared that [the Senator] would have no opposition 
to amount to anything in his campaign for re-election. The speculation and word 
around the State right now is that probably [the Representative] will file for 
the U.S. Senate seat now held by [the Senator]. I have also been informed that 
[the Senator’s] forces have offered [the Representative] $50,000 if he will stay 
out of the Senate race and run for re-election as Congressman.” (Letter from 
SAC to Hoover, 5/20/64.) 

gi Letter from Attorney General McGrath to President Truman, 12/7/49; 
letter from Hoover to Vaughn, l/14/50. 

89 Memorandum from Hoover to Rogers. 5/25/60. 
*Bishop deposition, 12/2/75, p. 2yl. Bi$hoi stated that he acted on his own, 

rather than at the direction of higher Bureau executives. However, Director 
Hoover did hare a memorandum prepared on the reporter summarizing every- 
thine in the Bureau’s files ahout him. which he referred to when he met with 
the &porter’s superiors. (Bishop deposition, 12/2/75, p. 215.) 

‘l Memorandum from Executives Conference to Hoover, l/4/50. Early exam- 
plus included historian Henry Steele Commager, “personnel of CBS,” and former 
Interior Secretary Harold Ickes. (Memorandum from Mohr to Tolson, 12/21/49.) 
Br the time it was abolished in 1952, the list included 332 names, including 
mystery writer Rex Stout. whose novel ‘The Doorbell Rang” had “presented a 
highly distorted and most unfavorable picture of the Bureau.” (Memorandum 
from 1\1. A. Jones to Bishop, 7/U/72.) 
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This request for “a memo” on each wit ic meant that. before comrone 
was j)laccd on t11c list, the Director rccciwtl, iii effect, a “nanw clwck” 

L 

rrport, summarizing *‘xliat w had in our files” on th& indi~idnal.s2 
In addition to assembling information ‘on criticr, nniiw checks were 

run as a matter of regular 13urcnn policy on all “ne\~-ly elected Govcr- 
nor5 and Congressmen.” The (‘rime Records Division instructed the 
field ofices to snlnilit ‘%imm~ar~ memoranda” on such officials, cowr- 
ing both “public source informnt ion” and “any other info~~mntioii tliat) 
tliev had in their files.” O3 These “summary memoranda” were provided 
to i>irector IIoo~r and inaintnined in the Crime I<r~ords rXrision fol 
use in “congressional liaison”-which the Division head said included 
“selling” hostile Congressmen on “liking the FBI.” s4 

It has been widely believed among ?tlembcrs of Congress that the 
l3urcau had information on each of them .g5 The impact of that belief 
led Collgressmnll 13oggs to state : 

Our apathy in this Congress, our silence in this House, our 
very fear of speaking out in other forums has watered the 
roots and hastenecl the growth of a vine of tyranny which 
is ensnaring that Constitution and Bill of Rights which w-e 
are each sworn to uphold. 

Our society can survive many challenges and many threats. 
It cannot survive a planned and programmed fear of its 

own government bureaus aud agencksG 
ICUhfi?~ding (cl) 

The FBI has also used intelligence as a vehicle for covert efforts 
to influence social policy and l,olitical action. 

The FBI’s intcrfrrcnce with the democratic process was not the 
result of any overt decision to reshape society in conformance with 
Bureau-approwcl norms. Rather. the Bureau’s actions were the natural 
consequence of attitudes within the. Bureau toward social change, com- 
bined \vith a strong sense of duty to protect society-even from its 
own “wrong” choices. 

The FBI saw itself as the guardian of the public order, and be- 
lieved that it had a responsibility to counter threats to that order, 
using any means arailablc.Q7 ,4t tile same time, the Bureau’s assess- 
ment, of what constituted a “threat” was influenced by its att,itude 
toma.rd the forces of change. In effect, the Bureau chose sides in the 

” Bishop deposition, 12/2/75, p. 207. 
03The field office was also expected to send to headquarters any additional 

allegations about the Congressman or Governor which might crime to its atten- 
tion in future investigations, even if the Congressman or Governor was not 
himself the “subject” of the investigation. (Bishop deposition, 12/2/Z, pp. 194- 
200.) 

” Bishop deposition, 12/2/75, pp. 206-7. 
O5 The FBI is not the only agenc.v believed to have files on Congressmen. Ac- 

cording to Ren. Andrew Youne. “in the freshman orientation” of new House 
memb&s, “on& of the things y& are told is that there are seven agenices that 
keep files on private lives of Congressmen.” (Rep. Andrew Young testimony, 
2/19/76, p. 48.) 

BBRemarks hy Rep. Hale Boggs, House of Representatives, 4/22/71, Cnngres- 
sional Record, Vol. 117, Part 9, p. 11562. 

WThe means used are discussed in the finding on “Covert Action to Dixupt 
and Discredit Domestic Groups”, as well as the DetaiIed Repnrts on COIN- 
TELPRO, Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr., and the Black Panther Party. 
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major social movements of the last fifteen wars? and then attacked the 
other side with the unchecked power at its ~lispwal. 

The clearest proof of the 1<11rwn’s attitude toward cliai~gc is its own 
rhetoric. The language nscd in internal documrnts ~li1cli were not 
intcndcd to bc disseminated outside the Ewean is that, of the IiiglilJ- 
charged l~olcmic rcwaliiig clear biases. 

For csample, in one of its annual internal reports on COI~TI%- 
PRO. the 13urcaii took pride in Iin\-ing gircn “tlw lie” to what it 
callctl “the Communist canard” tllat “the Srgro is downtrocldcn and 
has no opportnnit its in L1mericn.” This was accomplished by placing 
a story in a ncwspaprr in which a “wealthy Kcpro industrialist” stated 
that “tllc Sepro will liar-e to earn respectability ancl a responsible posi- 
tion in the community before he is accepted as an equal.” It is signifi- 
cant that this view was rsprcssed at about the same time as the civil 
rights morement’s March on Washington, which was intended to 
focus public nttcntion on the denial of opportunities to black Ameri- 
cans, and which rejected the view that inalienable rights hare to be 
“earned.” 9S 

The rhetoric used in dealing with the Vietnam War and those in 
opposition to it is even more revealing. The war in Vietnam produced 
sharply divided opinions in the country ; again, the I3ureau knew 
which side it was on. For instance, fifty copies of an article entitled 
“Rabbi in Vietnam Says Withdraw1 got The Answer” were anony- 
mously mailed by the FBI to members of the Vietnam Day Committee 
to “convince” the recipients 
policy in Vietnam.” Q9 

“of the correctness of the U.S. foreign 

The I3nrean also ordered copies of a film called “Wl~ile Brave Men 
Die” which depicted “communists, left-wing and pacifist actirities as- 
sociated with the so-called ‘peace morcment’ or student agitational 
demonstrations in opposition to the I’nited States position in Viet- 
nam.” The film was to be used for training Bureau personnel in con- 
nection with “increased responsibilities relating to communist inspired 
student agitational activities.” loo 

In the same rein. a directive to the Chicago field office shortly after 
the lM8 Democratic Conrention instructed it to “obtain all possible 
evidence” that would “disprore” charges that the Chicago police 
used undue force in dealing with antiwar demonstrations at the 
Conrention : 

Once again, the liberal press and the bleeding hearts and 
the forces on the left are taking advantage of the situation 
in Chicago surrounding the Democratic Kational Convention 
to attack the police and organized law enforcement. agen- 
cies. . . . We should be mindful of this situation and develop 
all possible evidence to expose this activity and to refute 
these false allegntions.‘O* 

8*1\I~mnrandum from FBI Headquarters to Sew York Field Office, et al., 
S/13/63. 

RBM~mornndnm from FBI Headquarters to San Francisco Field Office, 
U/11/65 

lM Memorandi~m from FBI IIwdgunrtws to Sew York Field Office et al.. 
s/9/66. 

‘“I Memnrnndum from FBI hrndquarters to Chicago Field Office S/28/68. 
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The Bureau also attempted to enforce its view of sesnnl morality. 
For rsamplc, two students lxcxmc COISTI%I’RO targets wlwn they 
defended the uric of a foul,-lcttcr \~ortl, e~cxn thongll the tlenlonstl.atiol1 
in which tllev ])al?ici]~iJtetl “(low not appear to be iiq~iwtl by the 
Sew Left,” b~~~~:~u~~~ it “shows obvious disrc~gartl for tlcccncy ant1 15 
tablislwl morality.” lo2 ,111 alloJl~lJlOllS 1tttw ~““‘I’Ol’tctlly from an 
irate parent ant1 an nrtirlc entitled “F~~~~ T,m-c (‘0111cs to _\nstin” 
wrc illailed to a state senator and the cliniJ~m:JJJ of the I*iiirersity 
of Texas Board of Rcgrnts to aid in b’fowing tlje 17niwrsity to tilli(' 

action against tliose administrators wlio arc 1wrniittiJig an ntmosphcrc 
to build up 0~1 campus that v-ill iw a fcrtilc firltl for the Sew Ikft.” “’ 
And a ficl(1 oflice was outraged at tlie distribution on campus of a 
11ewspapcr called SCR\EW, which was described as ‘Lcontaininp a 
typr of filth that co1lld only originatct in a deprarcd mind. It is rrpre- 
scntntiw of the t,ypc of nicntalit]v that is following the Sew I,eft 
thf?OJ?’ Of illl~~lOJ’a~lt~ 011 NTtCliJl Cdk’~C C’:lJ”l”l”E”.“ lo4 

,-\s these cstmplcs dcn~onstmtc. the FBI believed it had a duty to 
maintain the existing social and political order. Whether or not one 
agrees with the Bureau’s view, it is profoundly disturbing that an 
agency of the government secretly attempted to impose its views on the 
dmerican people. 

(i) Use of the LVedin 
The FBI attempted to influence public opinion by supplying in- 

formation or articles to “confidential sources” in the near-s me&a. The 
FBI’s Crime Records Division lo5 Fas responsible for covert liaison 
with the media to advance two main domestic intelligence objectives : lo6 

1m Memorandum from FBI Headquarters to Minneapolis Field Office, 11/4/6S. 
‘03JJemorandun~ from San Antonio field office to FBI Headquarters, S/12/68; 

memorandum from FBI Headquarters to ‘San Antonio Feld Office, S/25/68. 
lo’ The field office also disapproved of the “hippo types” distributing the news- 

paner. with their “nnkemnt clothes”. “mild beards;‘. and “other esnmnles of their 
tioLconformit~“. Accordingly. an anonymous letter’was sent ‘to a stair legislator 
protesting the distribution of such “depravity” at a state unirrrsit.r, noting that 
“this is becoming a way of campus life. Poison the minds of the young, destroy 
their moral being. and in less than one generation this country will hr riw for 
its downfall.” (Memorandum from Ken-.York Field Office to FBI Headquarters, 
s/23/69 ; memorandum from FBI Headquarters to Sewark Field Office, l/69. 

lai The Crime Records Division also had responsibilit,r for disseminating infor- 
mation to cultivate a farorahle public image for the FBI-a practice common to 
many government agencies. This objective was pursued in rarious wags. One sec- 
tion of the Crime Records Dirision was assigned to assemble “material that was 
needed for a nuhlic relations nroeram.” This section “dewloned information for 
television sho&. for writers. Eor huthors. for ne\~spapermen.Al~enple who wanted 
in-dept.h informat,ion concerning the FBI.” The section also “handled scripts” 
for public sen-ice radio programs produced by FBI Field Offices : reviewed scripts 
for television and radio sho1y-s dealing with the FBI; and handled the “public 
relations and publicity aspect” of the “ten most tenanted fugitives program.” The 
Bureau attempted to assert control over media presentations of information 
about its activities. For example, Director Hool-er’s apprnral was necessary 
before the Crime Records Division would coonwate with an author intending 
to write a book about the FRI (Rishnp testimony, 12/2/W pp. CrS. 18.) I 

loB Memoranda recommending use of the media for COISTELPRO purposes 
sometimes hore the designation “Mass Media Program.” which appeared mere- 
1.v to signify the function of the Crime Rernrds Division as a “conduit” for 
disseminating information at the rrqnrst of the Domestic Intelligenre Division. 
(Bishop testimony. 12/2/Z. pp. 63-68, SK) The dissemination of derogatory 
information to the media was usually reviewed through the Bureau’s chain of 
rnmmnnd and received final approval from Director Hoover. (Bishop testimony, 
12/2/i??, p. 89.) 
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(1) providing derogatorv information to the media intended to gen- 
erally tliscretlit the activit’ies or ideas of targeted groups or individuals; 
and (2) tlissrminatinp unfnrornble articles, news releases. and back- 
ground information m order to disrupt, particular activities. 

Typically, a local FBI agent would provide information to a “friend- 
ly news SOllI'CC ‘* on the condition Yhat the I3urcau‘s interest. in these 
matters is to be kept in the strictest confidence.” loi Thomas E. Bishop, 
former Director of the Crime Records Dirision, testified that he kept 
a list of the Bureau’s “press friends” in his desk.los Bishop and one 
of his predecessors indicated that the FBI sometimes refused to CO- 

operate with reporters critical of the Bureau or its Director.lO” 
Bishop stated that. as a “general rule,” the Eureau disseminated only 

“public recorcl information” to its media contacts, but this category 
was viewed by the Bureau to include. any information which could 
conceivablv be obtained 1)~ close scrutiny of even the most obscure pub- 
lications.1~~ Within these l<aramcters, background informat.ion supplied 
to reporters “in most. cases [could] include everything” in the Bureau 
files on a targeted individual; the selection of information for publica- 
tion would be left to the reporter’s judgmcnt.111 

Thrre are numerous examples of authorization for the preparation 
and dissemination of unfavorable information to discredit. generally 
the activities and ideas of a target : I12 

-FBI headquarters solicited information from field offices “on a 
continuing basis” for “prompt . . . disseminat,ion to the news media . . . 
to discredit the K’cw Left, movement, and its adherents.” Headquarters 
requested, among otther things. that : 

specific ‘data shonlcl be furnished depicting the scurrilous and 
depraved nature of many of the characters, activit.ics. habits 
and living conditions reprrsrntatire of New Left adherents. 

Field Ofices were to be exhorted that “Every avenue of possible em- 
barrassment must be rigorouslr and enthusiastically explored.” I13 

-FBI headquarters anthor&ed a Field Office to furnish a media con- 
tact, with “background information and any arrest record” on a man 

Irn For esample, Memorandum from FBI Headquarters to Atlanta Field Office, 
10/22/m 

lo8 Bishop. 12/2/X, p. 33. 
lo8 Cartha DeI~oach, who handletl media contacts f,)r several years, testified that 

this technique was not actunllg used as much as the Director desired: 

If any unfair comment appeared ill any segment of the press concerning 
;\Ir. Hoover or the FBI Mr. Hoover . wonld say do not contact 
this particular newspaper or do not contact this person or do not CO- 
operate with this lwrson. If I had complied strictly to the letter 
of the law to JIr. Hoover‘s imtrnctions, I think I would be fair in say- 
ing that we wnuldn’t he conyeratin, m with hardly a single newspaper in 
the Vnited States. The men down thrnngh the Fears had to overlook 
some of those instructions and deal fairly with all segments of the 
I)ress. (DeLnach testimony. 11/2.5/75. pp. 2X7-214.) 

I” Bishop statfd that the Crime Records Division was “srrupnlnus” in prorid- 
ine information whirl1 could be cited to a “w~gc and paragraph” in a pnblic 
s&rcr. (Bishop. 12/2/75. pp. 24. 177-178.) 

‘I1 Bishop. 12/2/75. pp. 1,3%130. 
‘I? T. I?. Bishop stated that from the FRT dncnments nrailnhle to the Committee. 

il \V:IS inipossil~le to determine whether an article was xctnnlly printed after a 
IICLVS release or a draft article had been supplied to a media source. (Bishop, 
12/2/7-T p. 86.) 

I13 Nekorandum from C. D. Brennan to W. C. Sullivan, 5/22/68. 
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affiliated with “a radical XeTT- Left element” who had been “active in 
shon-ing films on the Black Panthers ant1 police in action at various 
universities during student, riot.ing.” The media contact had requested 
material from the Bureau which “would have a detrimental effect on 
[the target’s] act,irit,ies.” 11* 

-Photographs depicting a radical group’s apart.mcnt RS “a sham- 
bles with lewd, obscene and revolutionary slogans displayed on the 
walls? mere furnished to a free-lance writer. The directive from head- 
quarters said : “As this publicity will be derogatory in nat.uro and 
might serve to neutralize the group, it is being approved.” I” 

-The Boston Field Office was nnthorizrd to furnish “derogatory 
information about the Kation of Islam (NOI) to established source 
[name excised] ” : 

Your suggestions concerning material to furnish [name] are 
good. Emphasize to him that the SO1 predilection for via- 

lonco, preaching of race hatred, and hypocrisy, should be ex- 
posed. Material furnished [name] should be either public 
source or known to enough people as to protect your sources. 
Insure the Bureau’s interest in this matter is completely 
protected by [name] .I10 

One Bureau-inspired documen+ry on the NO1 reached an audience 
of 200,000.“7 Alt(llough the pubhc was t,o be convinced that the NO1 
was “violent”, t,he Bureau knew t,his ~8s not in fact true of the or- 
ganization as a ~vhole.~‘~ 

-The Section which supervised the. COIKTELPRO against the 
Communist Party intended to discredit a couple “identified with the 
Community Party movement” by preparing a nen-s release on the 
drug arrest of their son, which jvas to be furnished to “nexus media 
contacts and sources on Capitol Hill.” A Bureau official observed 
that the son’s “arrest and the Party connections of himself and his 
parents presents an excellent opportunity for espoitation.” The news 
release noted that “the Russian-born mother is currently under a 
deportation order?? and had a former marriage to the son of a promi- 
nent Communist Party member. The release added : “the Red Chinese 
have long used narcotics to help weaken the ;vouth of target 
countries.” I19 

“‘Memorandum to Director from SAC Miami, 3/10/70. Bishop testified that 
he “would hope” that in response to the directive to disseminate the target’s 
“arrest record” the Division would have disseminated only conviction records. 
Bishop said that under the Attorney General’s guidelines then in effect only 
conviction records or arrests which were a matter of public record in a par- 
ticular jurisdiction were to be disseminated. Bishop stated that his policy was 
not to disseminate an arrest record “especially if that arrest record resulted in 
an acquittal or if the charge was never completed., . because that is not, to mv 
mind, anything derogatory against a guy, 
(Bishop testimony, 12/2/E. pp. 163-167, 173.) 

until he actually gets convicted.” 

US Memorandum from FBI Headquarters to Boston Field Office, l/13/68. 
I” Memorandum from FBI Headquarters to Boston Field Office, 2/27/68. 
l*‘lIen~ornndum from Tampa Field Office to FBI Headquarters, 2/7/E+. 
=a Deposition of Rlack Nationalist COINTELPRO supervisor. 10/17/75, p. 21; 

Dwosition of George C. Moore, Chief of the Racial Intelligence Section, 11/3/i’& 
11, 36. 

“leMemorandum from F. J. Baumgardner to TV. C. Sullivan, G/3/63. 
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---When the v7ife of a Communist 1’art.v leader purchased a new car, 
the FBI prepared a news item for distribution to “a cooperative news 
media source” mocking the lender’s “prosperity” “as a disruptive 
tactic.” The itcni commented sarcastically that “comrades of the self- 
proclaimed leader of the American lvorking class should not, allow 
this example of [the leader’s] prosperity to discourage their con- 
tinued contributions to Partr coffers.” 12” 

-After a public mccting,r’in Sew York City, where “the handling 
of the [,JFR assassination] investigation was criticized,” the FBI 
prepared a news item for placement ‘*with :I cooperative news media 
source” to discredit the meeting on the grounds that “a reliable [FBI] 
source” had reported a “conrictecl perjurer and iclentifiecl espionage 
agent as present in the audience.” lZ1 

-As part of the new Left COISTELPRO, the FBI sent a letter 
under a fictitious name to Lift magazine to “call attention to the 
unsavory character” of the editor of an underground magazine, who 
was characterized as “one of the moving forces behind the Youth 
International Partv, rommonlv known as the Yippies.“ To counteract 
a recent, L;fc “artic’le favorable” to the Yippie editor, the FBI’s ficti- 
tious letter said that “the cuckoo editor of an unimportant smutty 
little rag” should be “left in the sewers.” 12* 

Murh of the Bureau’s use of the media to influence public. opinion 
was directed at disrupting specific activities or plans of targeted 
groups or individuals : 

--In March 1968, FBI Headquarters granted authority for furnish- 
ing to a “cooperative national news media source” an article “designed 
to curtail success of JIartin J,uthcr King’s fund raising” for the poor 
people’s march on Washington, D.C’. by asserting that “an embarrass- 
ment of riches has befallen King . . . and King doesn’t need the 
monev.” lZ3 To further this objective. Headquarters authorized the 
JIiami Office “to furnish data &onccrning money wasted by the Poor 
People’s Campaign” to a friendly news reporter on the usual condition 
that “the Bureau must nat be rC\-calcd as the source.” lz4 

The Section Chief in charge of the Black Xationalist COINTEL- 
PRO also rrrommcnded that ‘~I~1~otogrnI~hs of demonstrators” at the 
march should be furnished: he attached six photographs of Poor 
People’s Campaign participants at a Cleveland rally, accompanied by 
the note : “These show the militant7 aggressive appearance of the par- 
ticipants ant1 might be of interest to a cooperative news source.” lZ5 

-As part of the Sew Left COISTELPRO, authority was granted 
to the -Atlanta Fieltl Office to fnrnisb a newspaper editor who had 
“written numerous editorials praising the Bureau” with “information 
to supl)lement that already known to him from public sources concern- 
ing sub\-crsive influences 111 the Atlanta peace movement. His use of 
this material in n-cll-timed articles would be used to thwart the 
[upcoming] demonstrations.” lZF 

‘“Memornndmn from F. .T. Ranmnrdncr to W. C. Snllivnn. 8/R/65. 
1x Memornndnm from F. .T. Ik~nn~~~rrlnrr to XV. C. Snllirnn. f/24/64. 
“’ ~I(~inor:~lltlrn~~ from Sew York Field Office to FRI Hendqnnrtrm. 10/16/6S. 
‘23 .\Icmorniitl~~m from G. C. Moore to W. c’. Sullivan. 10/%/G?. 
“’ ~Iemorantlum from FRI Hwdqnnrters to 1linmi Field Office, ‘i/9)/68. 
I5 1\ltmornntliim from G. C‘. .\Ionre to n-. C. SnlliTnn. 5/l i/76. 
‘% ~Irmornndnm from FBI Headquarters to Atlnntn Field Office. 10/22/6S. 
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-.2n FBI Special Agent in Chicago contacted a reporter for a. 
major newspaper to arrange for the publication of an article which 
was expected to “greatly encourage factional antagonisms during the 
SDS Convention!’ by publicizing the attempt of “an unde.rground 
communist, organization” to take over SDS. This contact. resulted in 
an article headlined “Red knit Seeks SDS Rule.” 127 

-FBI Director Hoover approved a Field Office plan “to get cooper- 
ative news media to cover closed meetings of Students for a Democratic 
Society (SDS) and other Sew Left groups” with the aim of “dis- 
rupting them.” lZ8 

-Se;Teral months after COIYTELPRO operations were supposed 
to have terminated, the FBI attempted to discredit attorney Leonard 
Boudin at the t,ime of his defense of Daniel Ellsberg in the Pentagon 
Papers case. The FBI “called to the attention” of the Washington 
bureau chief of a major news service information on Boudin’s alleged 
“sympat.hy” and “legal services” for “Communist causes.” The reporter 
placed a detailed news release on the wires which cited Boudin’s “iden- 
tification with Leftist causes” and included references to the arrest of 
Boudin’s daughter, his legal representation of the Cuban government 
and “Communist sympatliizer” Paul Robeson, and the statement that 
“his name also has been connected wit.11 a number of other alleged com- 
munist front groups.” In a handwritten note, J. Edgar Hoover di- 
rected that copies of the news release be sent to “Haldeman, A. G., 
and Deputy.” lZQ 

The Burea.u sometimes used its media contacts to prevent or post- 
pone the publication of articles it considered favorable to its tar,wts 
of unfavorable to the FBI. For example, to influence articles which 
related t.o t.he FBI, the Bureau took advantage of a close relaltionship 
with a high official of a major national magazine, described in an FBI 

I-’ Jlrmorandum from Chicago Field Office to FBI Headquarters, G/18/69. 
‘2R Memorandum from FBI Headquarters to Indianapolis Fitld Office, 6/17/68. 
129 FBI Memorandum from Bishop to Jlohr, 7/6/71; Bishop testimony, 12/2/i& 

pp. 148-151. 
Two Fears earlier the Crime Records Division prepared a sixteen-page memo- 

randum containing information on “I.onard B. Boudin. Attorney for Dr. Ren- 
jamin Speck,” written at the time of Speck’s indictment ior conspiring to violate 
the Selective Service Act. (FBI Memorandum from 11. A. Jones to T. E. Bishop, 
2/26/M) The memorandum described “alleged associations and activities of 
Boudin” related to oreanizations or individuals considered “subversive” br the 
FBI, (Bishop, 12/2/75, pp. 134-135) and included : names of many of BoGdin’s 
clients; citations to magazines and journals in which Boudin had published 
articles ; references to peiitions he had signed ; and notes on rallies and academic 
conferences at which he had spoken. The memorandum indicated that “the White 
House and Attorney General have been advised” of the information on Boudin’s 
background. Notations on the cover sheet of the memorandum by high Bureau 
officials indicate that approval was granted for “furnishing the attached infor- 
mation to one of our friendly news contacts” but the information was not used 
until after the “results of appeal in Speck’s case.” Bishop did not recall dis- 
trihuting the Boudin memorandum. (Bishop, 12/2/i& pp. 1X-126) 

The head of the Crime Records Division spwulated that the memorandum 
was prepared at the request of a reporter because he did not remember a request 
from Hoover or from the Domestic Intelligence Division. which xvas the normal 
route for assignments to the Crime Records Division. Division Chief Bishnl, 
testified that he probably instructed the Division “to get. 111, any public source 
information that we have concerning Bnudin that shows his connation with the 
Communist Party or related groups of that nature.” (Bishop. 12/2/T& pp. 131- 
133) 
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nmnoranduin as “our good friend.” Through this relationship. the 
FBI %y!lcl~cd” a11 %nfarornble article against the Burenn” written 
b\- a free-lance xritcr about an FIST in\-wtigxt ion : “postl)onc(l l)ul)- 
llcntion” of an article on another FJ3I case: “fow~tallctl piil~lication” 
of an wticle by Dr. ;\lartin Luther King. ,Jr., . ant1 i*cwi\-cd infoixia- 
tion about proposctl editing of I<in$s nrticlfxl:“’ 

The Unrca~~ also attrinl)tetl to influence public opinion l)y using 
news inetlia SOIII’CC~ to discredit dissideid groups bv linking tlicni to 
the Coiiiniunist Party : 

-A confidential soiwce who publislictl n %clf-tlescribed conserv:v 
tire weekly newpaper” was anonyiiioi~sl~ ninilcd infoixintion on a 
clinrcli’s sponsorship of efforts to abolish thr ITonsc Conmittcr on 
Un-A1nwricall activi’tics. This pron~ptrcl an article entitlecl “Locals to 
-iid Red Line.?’ naming ‘the minister. aniong others. as n local sponsor 
of what, it. termed 5 “Coininunist dominntctl plot?’ to abolish IIU.1C.‘“’ 

-The I%urewn targeted a professor who had been the president of 
a local pcwcc Cellter, n “coalition of anti-\‘ictiixill :inrl anti-draft 
groups.” In 1%X, he resigned tcnipomri!y to becoine state chairman of 
Eugene McCarthy’s presidciit~ial can~paign orgmizntion. Inforinat.ion 
on the professor’s wife. who had aplxircntly associated with Coniinu- 
nist, Party inrinbers in the early 1050’s. w-a.5 furnished to n newspaper 
editor to“‘espose those pcol~le at this time when they are receiving 
considerable publicity in orcld to “clisrnpt~ the lliembcrs” of the 
pcsce organization.132 

-Other instances included an attempt to link a school bovcott with 
t,he Communists by alerting newsmen to the boycott leader’s plans to 
attend a. literary rrccption at the Soviet iiiissioii ; 133 furnishing infor- 
inntion to the iiieclia on the participation of the Coniinuiiist Party 
presidentiul cancliclutc in the I’nited Farm TYorkers picket line ; 13a 
“confidentially” inforlr1in.g established P~III’CES in three northem Cali- 
fornia newspapers that t.he San Frxnc.isco Count,y Conmlunist Part) 
Committee had stated that, civil rights groups were to “begin work- 
ing” on the area? large newspapers “in nii effort to secure grentel 
clllplo~~iiient of Kegroes ;” Ia3 alid fnrnishin,g information to the media 
on Socialist ~~orkci~s Party participation in the Spring Mobilization 
Comnlittec to End the War in Yietnatn to “discredit” the antiw-ar 
grOLIp.136 

(ii) dttctcks 071 Leaders 

Through covert propwgancla. the FBI not, only attcmptecl to in- 
flwnce public opinion on matters of social policy, but also directly in- 

“’ 3Icmornndum from TV. H. Stapleton to C. I). I)eLonch, 11/B/M 
“I ItIrnlnrnndnn~ from Clereland Field Office to FBI Headqnnrters. 10/28/04 : 

Il1P1llori7ildlii11 from FE1 Hmdqunrters to (‘lerrlxntl Field Office, ll/(i/fM. 
“’ ~Ie~uorandum from FRI Headqnnrters tn I’lloenis Field Office, G/11/68. 
lx3 JIemorandnm frnm FRI Henclqnarters to Sew York Field Office, 2/4/M. 
“*The target was not intended to be the rnited Farm Workers, but a local 

cwllrpr professor espected to pnrticilmtr in the picket line. The Bureau had 
unsuccessfnll~ directed “consicleral~le efforts to lbrevent hiring” the professor. 
A\i)lmreiitlr. the Bureau did not consider the imnnct of this techninue on the 
ITnited Fal*;u Workers efforts. (Memornndum fro**; San Francisco Fiek Office to 
E’liT IIe:itlqnnrtrrs. 9/E/68 : memorandum from FRI Headqnnrtrrs to San Frnn- 

lx’ ~1emor:1ndm11 from San Francisco Firltl Office to FRI Hc:~tlgnnrtrrs. 4/10/6-I. 
1?o ;\leniornntlnm from San Francisco Field Office to FBI Hentlqilarters, 3/10/67 : 

memorandum from FBI Headquarters to San Francisco Field Office, 3/14/67. 
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terrened in the people’s choice of leaclersl~il~ both through the electoral 
process and in other, less formal arenas. 

For instance. the Bureau made plans to disrupt. a possible “Peace 
Party” ticket in the 1068 elections. One field office noted that “effec- 
tively tabbing as communists or as commlulist-backed the more hysteri- 
cal opponents of the President on the Vietnam question in the midst 
of the presitlcntial canipaign woultl be a real boon to Mr. ,Johnson.” K+; 

In the FBI’s COI~TET,J?RO l)rograms, political candidates were 
targeted for disruption. The document which originated the Socialist, 
Workers Party COISTELPRO noted that, the SUP “has, over the 
past several vears, been openly espousing its line on a local and 
national basis through running candidates for public office.” The 
Bureau decided to “alert the public to the fact that the SW? is not, 
just another socialist group but follows the revolutionary principles 
of Marx, Lenin, and Engels as interpreted by Leon Trotsky.” Several 
S7VP candidates were targeted, usually by leaking derogatory in- 
formation about the candidate to the press.138 

Other COIXTELPRO programs also included attempts to disrupt 
campaigns. For example, a Midwest lawyer running for City Council 
was targeted because he and his firm had represented “subversives”. 
The Bureau sent an anonvmous letter to several community leaders 
which decried his “commumst background” ancl labelled him a t‘charla- 
tan.” 139 I-ruler a fictitious name: the Bureau sent a letter to a television 
station on which the candidate was to appear, enclosing a series of 
questions about his clients and his activities which it believed should 
be asked.‘*O The candidate was defeated. He later ran (successfully. 
as it happened) for a judgeship. The Bureau attempted to disrupt this 
subsequent, successful campaign for a judgeship by using an anti- 
communist, group to distribute fliers and write letters opposing his 
candidacy.141 

In another instance. the FBI attempted to have a Democratic Party 
fundraising affair raided bv the state ,llcoholic Beverage Control 
Commission. The, fund raiser was targeted because of two of the can- 
didates who would be present. One, a state assemblyman running for 
reelection. was active in the Vietnam Day Committee; the other, the 
Democratic candidate for Congress. had been a sponsor of the National 
Committee to Abolish the House Committee on ITn-American Activi- 
ties and had led demonstrations opposing the manufacture of napalm 
bonlbs.‘42 

Although the disruption of election campaigns is the clearest exam- 
ple, the FBI’s interference with the political process was much broader. 

ISi Memorandum from Chicago Field Office to FBI Headquarters, 6/l/67. 
I35 ~Ien~orandun~ from FBI IImdgunrters to all SAC’s, 10/E/61. 
]a JIrmorandum from Detroit Field Office to FBI Headquarters, 9/l/65 ; memo- 

randum from FBI Headquarters to Detroit Field Office, n/22/65. 
la0 Memorandum from Detroit Field Office to FBI Headquarters, Q/28/65 ; memo- 

randum from FBI Headquarters to Detroit Field Office. 10/l/65. 
“I Memoranduni from Detroit Field Office, to FBI Headquarters. l/l!l/67. 
I” Memorandum from FBI Headquarters to San Antonio Field Office, 11/14/C%3. 

The attempt was unsuecessfnl : a prior raid on a fire department’s fund raiser 
had angered the local District Attorney, and the ABC decided not to raid the 
Democrats because of “political ramifications.” 
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For esxml~le, all of the. COISTEI,I’RO 1 11-o g rams wrrr~ aimed at the 
leadership of dissident group~.‘~~ 

In one cast, the I<urean’s plans to discredit a civil rights leader in- 
cludetl an attempt to replace him with a candiclatc chosen by the 
Bureau. I>uring 1964, the FI31 began a massive program to discredit 
l>r. Martin Luther Rinp, .Jr. and to “neutralize” his effectiveness 
as the leader of the civil rights movement.“’ On ,January 8, 1964, 
Assistant Director William (‘. Sullivan proposed that the FBI select 
a next “national Segro leader” as Dr. King’s successor after the Bureau 
had taken Dr. Ring “off his pedestal” : 

When this is done, and it can and will be done . . . t,he 
Negroes will be left without a national leader of sufficiently 
conlpelling personality to steer them in the right direction. 
This is what could h:~l~lxw, but need not happen if the right 
kind of Segro leader coultl at this time be gradually de,vel- 
aped so as to ol-crshadow Dr. Ring and be in the position to 
assume the role of leadership of the Srgro people. when King 
has bten completely discredited. 

I want to makeSit clear at once that I clon’t propose that 
the FI3I in any way became in\-olrcd openly as the sponsor 
of a Negro leader to o\-ershadow Martin Luther King. . . . 
Hiit, I do propose that I be given permission to rsplore further 
this entire matter. . . . 

If this thing can be set up properly without the Bureau in 
any way becoming directly in\-olvecl, T think it wonlcl not 
only be a great help to the FI3I l~it ~oultl be a fine thing for 
the country at large. While I am not specifying at this 
moment, tliere arc various ways iu which the FBI could give 
this entire matter the proper direction and develol~nrcnt. 
There are, highly placed contacts of the FHI who might. be 
very helpful to further such a step. . . .14.i 

The, Rureau’s efforts to discredit Dr. King are discussed more fully 
elsewhere.‘46 It is, ho\wver. important to note here that some of the 
Bureau’s efforts coincided with I)r. King’s activities and statements 
concerning major social and political issues. 

(iii) Eraggemting The Threcrt 
The Bureau also used its control over the information-gathering 

process to shape the T-iews of government oflicials and the public on the 

1’3The originating document for the “Black Sationalist” COISTELPRO ordered 
field offices to “expose, disrupt, misdirect, discredit, or otherwise neutralize” the 
“leadership” and “spokesmen” of the target groups. The “Sew Left” originating 
memo called for efforts to “neutralize” the Sew Left and the “Key Activitists,” 
defined as “those iudividuals who are the moving forces behind the iYew Left ;” 
the letter to field offices made it clear that the targets were the “leadership” 
of the “Sew Left’-a term which was never defined. (Memorandum from FBI 
Headquarters to all SAC’s, S/25/67.) 

“‘Memorandum from Brennan to Sullivan, 5/Q/68; memorandum from FBI 
Headquarters to all SAC’s, .5/10./W. 

I” Jlrmorandum from Sullivan to Belmont, l/8/64. Although this proposal 
was approved by Director Hoover, there is no evidence that any steps were taken 
to implement the plan. 

“‘See Martin Luther King. Jr. Report : Sec. V, The FBI’s Efforts to Discredit, 
Dr. Martin Luther King : 1964, Sec. T’II, The FBI Program Against Dr. King : 
I Q6%1Q&S. 
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threats it. pcrceiwd to the social order. For example, the FBI ex- 
aggerated the strength of the Coiiimiunist Party and its iiiflncnce over 
the civil rights and anti-~~ictnnm war mo\cments. 

Opponents of civil riglits Icgislation in tile early l!XOs had charge(1 
that such lcgislntion was “a part of the world Communist consl)iracj 
to divide and conrluer our country from within.” The truth or falsity 
of these charges was a nintter of concern to the acliiiinisti~ntioll. (‘on- 
giws. and the public. Since the I3urcau ~-as assigned to conipile intclli- 
pencr 011 Comii~iiiiist activity. its e~tiiiintc was soll~llt and. plc5lllll~l~l~. 

rtlicd upon. ,4ccordingly, in 1963. the Domestic Intclligcncc Division 
submittecl a men~orandun~ to Director Hoover detailing the CPUSA’s 
“efforts” to exploit black -Americans, which it, conclucled were an 
“obvious failure.” ‘*; 

Director Hoortr was not pleased with this conclusion. He sent a 
sharp message back to the Division which, according to the ,\ssistnnt 
Director in charge. made it “evident that \v-e had to change our ways 
or wr, would all be out on the street.” 14’ Another memorandum was 
Itherefore written to give the Director “what Hoorcr wanted to 
hear.” I40 

The memorandum stated, “The Director is correct ;” it called Dr. 
Martin Luther King, Jr. “the most dangerous Negro of the future in 
this Xation from the standpoint, of communism, the Negro, and na- 
tional security :” and it concluded that it. was “unrealistic” to “limit 
ourselves” to “‘legalistic proofs or definitelv conclusive evidence” that 
the Communist Party wields “substantial Aluence over Seproes which 
one day could become decisive.” IS0 

Alt?lough the Division still had not said the influence WCIR decisire, 
by 196-l the Director testified before the HOLW Appropriations Sub 

committee that the “Communist influence” in the “Xepro niorrmrnt” 
was “vitally important.” *j* Only someone with access to the underlying 
infornlation would note that the facts could be interpreted quite tlif- 
ferently.151a 

‘I7 Memorandum from Baumgardner to Sullivan, 8/23/63, p. 1. 
“’ Sullivan deDosition. 11/l/75. D. 20. 
1’D Sullivan deposition; lljlj75; p. 29. 
=” Jlemorandum from Sullivan to Director, FBI, S/30/63. Sullivan described 

this process of “interpretive” memo writing ,to lead a reader to believe the Com- 
munists were influential without actually stating they were in control of a move- 
ment : “You have to spend years in the Bureau really to get the feel of this. . . . 
You came down here to ‘efforts’, these ‘colossal efforts’. That was a key word of 
ours when we arc getting around the facts. . . You will not find anywhere in the 
memorandum whether the efforts were successful or unsuccessful. . . Here is 
another one of our words that vve used to cover up the facts, ‘efforts to exploit’, 
that word ‘exploit’. Nowhere will you find in some of these memos the results of 
the exploitation. [Like] ‘planning to do all possible’, you can search in vain for a 
statement to the effect that their nlans were successful or unsuccessful. nartlv suc- 

(Sullivan, 11/l/X, pp. 15-16.) - _ cessful or partly unsuccessful.” 
161 Hearings before ‘the House Appropriations Subcommittee, 88th Cong., 

2d Sess. (1961). 1,. 309. Director Hoover’s statement was widely publicized. 
(E.g., “Hoover Says Reds Exploit Segroes,” Sew York Times, 4/22/M, 1). 30) 
It caused serious cnncern among civil rights leaders who feared that it would 
hurt, the prospects for passage of the 1964 civil rights bill. 

I”’ Director Hoover had included similar exaggerated statements about Com- 
munist influence in a briefing to the Eisenhower Cahinet in 19X. Hoover had 
stated, regarding an NAACP&ponsored conference : 

“The Communist Party plnna to use this conference to embarrass the Adminis- 
tration by causing a rift between the Administration and Dixiecrnts who have 
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,I similar cs;!ggcrntion occnrwcl iii some of the 13ure~n’s statements 
011 coiiimm~ist influence on the anti-Vietnam war dcnlollstlations. 

Imnifdiately after tlie nirf~tilig, 1iowe~ei~. Hoe\-cr told llis arsociates 

that. tllr 13iirenn might not 1~ able to “tecliiiif~all~ state” that SIX3 w~5 
“all actual colinllullist oiy~iliz:itioll. *’ The FI3I 11lerelv knew that there 
wW2 “comniiinists in it.” IIoo~er instrnrted. IioweG~r, “What I want 
to gf+ to the President is the I~ackgi~3und n-it11 cniph:~sis upon the 
f~ommmiist influence tlwrciil so tliat lie n-ill hion- exactly what the pic- 
ture is.” The I)irector nfltlrtl that lie wanted “a good, strong mcmo- 
rxndiun~” pinpointing that the tlcnioiisti~ntions had lxw~ “laigwly par- 
ticipated in hy communists evrn thong11 they may not, hare initiated 
t11cm ;” the Bure:~u could “at least” say that, they had “joined ant1 
forced the issue.” ,1ccording to the Director, Pre&dcnt ,Johnson was 
“quite concerned” and wanted “1)rompt ant1 quick action.” IS4 

Once again, the Hnreau n-rote a report which made Communist “ef- 
forts” sound like (‘ommmiist si1cfc3s. The eight-page lncniorxncliini 
detailed all of the Communist Partv’s atteml)ts to “encourage’? domes- 
tic dissent 1)~ “a crescendo of critic&m aimed at negating every effort 
of the I-nited States to prevent Victnanl from being engulfed by com- 
munist aggressors.” Twice ii1 the eight l)a.ges. for a total of two and a 
half sentences, it, was 1)oiiitcd alit that niost dciiionstr:ttors wrrc not 
Party members and their decisions were not initiated or controlled by 
the communists. E:ach of these brief stntrments nlorcover, was follomeh 
l):\- a qualification : (1) “ho7c*e7*e,-. the Comnlunist Party, IX1 . . . has 
vlgoronsly supported these gronl~s and exerted influence ;” (2) “WMc 
the March [on Washington] was not Commmnist initiatccl . . . Com- 
munist Party nien~bcrs froiii thi~ouphout the nation participntetl.” 
[Emphasis adclecl.] Ii; 

The rest of the melllorandm~l is an illustration of what former 
Assistant I>irector Snllix-an called “intclyrctivr” mrmo writing in 

snp~mrtefl it, l)F forriu p tllr Afllllinistrntioli to tnkr :i shnfl 011 civil rights leg- 
i~l:~ltinu with the prcsrnt Congress. The I’nrtr hope.? through a rift to affect the 
l!Wi elef+inns.” [Emphasis xdded.] ( JIen~orandum from Director, FBI, to the 
lbxutire Assistnut to tlifl Attoruey General, 3/9/X. arid enclosure.) 

Dirwtnr IIonYer did lint iiiclude in his prepared briefing stntrmeut the infnr- 
mation reported to the White House separately earlier that thrrf~ was “un iudi- 
catinn” the the SAkCI had “allowed the Cnmmuuist Party to intiltrate the 
cwufwrnce.” (Hoover to Dillon Andersnn. Spfvial ,\ssistaiit to the I’resiflcut. 
3/5/X.) According to nue historical account, Hoover’s Cabinet briefing “rrin- 
forcefl the President’s iucliuation to lxwsi~ity” on civil rights legislation. (.J. TY. 
Andrrsou, f:iscnIlozccr, I~~otc’~1c71, nilrl tltc Congress: The !7’n11,97etl 0tQin.q of tlrc’ 
Civil Rigkta Hill of 1956-57 [I-niyersity of Alabama Press, 19641, p. 34.) 

‘X Jlemornndum from Hnorer to subordinate FBI officials, 4/28/C?. 
‘yi Iioover I11f’111orilllfl11I11. 4/28/G. 
I” Hoo\-er 1l1elrlor~Ilflli1i1. 4/28/G. 
‘X I,etter from Hoover to JIcCenrge I~unfl,v, Special Assistant to the 

President (Sationnl Security). 4/2S/G.Z. enclosing FBI xlleillorilriflu1ii. Subject : 
<!ommunist A%&irities Relative to United States Policy on Vietnam. 
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which Conmunist efforts and d&w arc eulpllasized without any 
cwluation of whether they had been or were likely to be successful. 

The exaggeration of (:onmunist participation, both by the FBI 
and White House staff members relying on FBI rel1oi+s,15G could only 
hare had the eflcct of reinforcing I’rrsidrnt ,Jolu~son’s original tcnd- 
enc-y, to discount dissent. apaiust the ~ictkn War as “Conununist 
inspired”--a. belief shared lq his sllccessor. Isi It is impossible to npxs- 
ure t.lie full effect of this distorted perception at, the very liigliwt pol- 
icymaking level. 

I” See, e.g., a memorandum from Marvin (Watson) to the President, Z/16/67, 
quoting from a Rureau report that : “the Communist Party and other organiza- 
tions are continuing their efforts to force the Inited States to change its present 
policy toward Vietnam.” 

I” The report prepared bg the intelligence agencies as the basis for the 1070 
“Huston Plan” included the following similar emphasis on the potential threat 
(and downplaying of the actual lack of success) : 

“Leaders of student protest groups” who traveled abroad were “considered to 
have potential for recruitment and participation in foreign-directed intelligence 
actiritr.” 

“Antiwar activists” who had “frequently traveled abroad” were considered 
“as having potential for engaging in foreign-directed irrtellipence collection.” 

The CIA was “of the view that the Soviet and bloc intelligence serrices are 
committed at the political level to exploit all domestic dissidents wherever 
possible.” 

Although there was “no hard eridence” of substantial foreign control of “the 
black extremist movement,” there was “a marked potential” and the groups were 
“highly stcsccptible to expIoitation by hostile foreign intelligence serrices.” 

“Communist intelligence services are capable of using their personnel, facili- 
ties, and agent personnel to work in the black extremist field.” 

IVhile there were “no substantial indications that the communist intelligence 
services hare actively fomented domestic unrest,” their “capability” could not 
“be minimized.” 

“The dissidence and violence in the I:nited States today present adversary 
intelligence services with oppohcnifics unparaZZelcd for forty years.” [Emphasis 
added.] (Special Report, Interagency Committee on Intelligence (Ad Hoc), 
.June 1970; substantial portions of this report appear in Hearings, Vol. 2, 
pp. 141-188.) 
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